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This smwall work is lovingly dedicated to the
memory of the intrewid pionsers of the early Hriggsville
rogion, with the hope that new fronticrs of interest in
paking "Cne Jorld" and maintaining it in peace will be ag

aagerly picncersd by thelir descendants,

The facta contained herein have been compiled
by Carla Lovesy and larie Beyer, with the aid of Katharine
Green (who also drew the map), the folks 'pround about, aﬂﬂ
the Bripgsville and Bigz Spring Telephone Company! Any
errors or omissions are entirely unintentional, and for

them we beg the Header's indulgence.



THE EARLY DAYS OF BRIGGSVILLE, MARQUETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

On a bright day in January, 1850, an ox-team drawing é heavily loaded
gleiph, ploddsd slowly along a narrow woods road hewn out of the pine and hardwood
forest that stretched without a break on either side. A light snow had fallen the
night before, and the dazzling flakes on pine biranches and roadsides made a fairy-
land of the Wisconsin wilderness.

The stillness was bruke;'l only by an occasional snort from the oxen or
the whirr of a prouse as it took to flipht from the terrifying apparition on the
roads Sgquirrels chattered protests from their caken lodges. Once an antlered
buck stepped into the clearing a few rods ahead of the sleigh, threw up his head
in amagement at the stranpe odor which assailed his nostrils, end with a bound of
indescribable grace diseppeared into the thicket beyond the road. Bluej.ajra
gereamed and the rat-tat—tat of the _waodpec}cer echoed sharply to startle ﬂml
attentive ears of the four cccupants of the sleigh who sat, surrounded by their
piled-up belongings, cbviously unable to move becavse of their many wrappings.

As the afterncon shadows lengthenaed to make deep blue traceries in the
snow the sleigh climbed a generous rise from which the travelers looking back,as
the oxen stopped to rest, glimpsed a long, gently-relling range of hlgh hills a
few miles to the South, now purple in the late-afternoon shadows beyond the blue-
and-white wilderness of forest and snow. An exclamation of delighted surprise
broke from the rumny-like figure beside the driver, and a woman's veice commented
that the wiew was ag beautiful aa York State or Yerment, except that the spaces
were wider.

The man bahind hep moved his wrappings to lay his arm across tha
shonldars of the young lad beside him and remarked that it was "fine country, and
goud hanting for a8 boy.?

The driver raised his arm and touched the lead-ox, and the beasts atarted



slowly on their was dowm the other side of the hill, where a clearing soon appesred
and s woman stepped out of her log cabln to peer eagerly at the passers-by. The
driver called to her that he would stop the next day on his return fo Portage City,
and sha turned quickly, after responding with a vave of her arm, and disappeared
within the cabin.

A mile or so farther on, the road gradually descended into a bottom-land
of birch and pine, and presently ¢ame within view of a long, narrow snow-covared
boedy of water, They continued on for geveral minutes until a clearing appeared
directly in front of them. As the sound of the ox-hoofs announced the arrival of
the sleiph, a shout went up from behind the large low-1lying log house built near the
shore, Imnediately the door opened and a large dop rushed out, followed by a young
boy and a woman who threw a sliawl abouf her hend and shoulders as she ctepped down
towards the sleigh. Two men appeared at the same time from the region of the log
f.l‘arm buildings behind the house, and. greetad the newcomers warmly, The oeccupgnts
of the sleigh climhed stiffiy from th::—:ir places and the entire company disappeared
Tiithin the house. The ox-team, as if accustomed to the procedure, walked alowly
around the house towards the barn, accompanied by the dog.

The new comers besldes the ox-team "Liveryman" from Portaps City, were
Amplius Chamberlain, his wile and son, vwho had traveled out the Old Pinery Road that
January day in 1850, enroute from Elkhorn, to a new life in the Wisconsin wildernmess.
The cabin on the Big Slough belonged to Silas Jalsworth. Silas iad come to Portage
in 1837 by steamboat, and established & trading post for furs and two meeting housses
in Portage. He also bullt this log house to which the travelers had come. In summer
he operated a ferry on the Wisconsin River. The older of the two men who came out
to greet the travelara was one Jonathan Putterfield who made his home at Walaworth's
bat had laid <laim to large holdings in the wvicinity, as well as several miles amay,
where Baraboo now stands.

Silas #alsworth was a hospitable man, and his large cabin at the far end

of the 0ld Plnery Hoad was the scene that night of the kind of pood cheer which
2



only the early settlers could adequatsly describe, from the roaring fires in the two
fireplaces, to the bountiful meal of venison, squirrel and partridee, corn-meal
cakes, and scelding tee which the women sipped while the men parteck, slso, of
gtronger brews and talked and talked far inte the star-splendid January night.

They talked about the possibilities of the region, and Amplius Chamberlain
bacame more and more convinced from what he heurd that here was a locality where he
might like {0 try his fortunss. Accordingly he set out with Puilterfield the next
morning for a polnt approximately two miles northwest of Jalsworth's clearing, They
traveled siawlyg on gnowshoes made for them by Viinnehage Indians, sinece there was no
road beyond Jdalsworth's at the end of the 0ld Pinery Hoad,.

Coming, at length, to & swall break in the wildernesa of tamarack on their
laft, Jonathan But*erfield pointed out a snow-covered area which lay within his
claim and which he called hig LITTLE LAEKE. In Summer, he said, it was the prettiest
spét in the country, and he hoped they would bury him near it vhen he died. {His
wish was fulfilled a scant two years later.)

Shortly, they followed the trail down a gentle ineline te the bankz of a
small river which flowed gracefully betswsen high banks of oek on the Scuth and &
marshy bower of cat—tails and rushes to the North., The "ereek", fed by many hiddan
eprings & few miles to the west, flowed dark beiween the banks of aparkling snow in
aplte of the severs cold., Jonathan Butterfield stopped there a moment to explain
thet only in the sharpest weather did the ice cover it completely, and then not for
long because of the considevable current. _

Soon they atood upon a piece of level ground, heavily wooded on elther
side but looking westward across an expanse of marsh and bog through which the dark
stream weandered morrily in the sunlight., To their left, among the trees which came
down to the marsh's edge, stood a group of tan or Tifteen stranga-looking structures
resembling tha skelatena of beehives, evidently long sapling peles, bent, with their

ends planted firmly in the ground, and the whole domed at the top to form circular



structures about eight feet in height. Those, explained Jonathan Butterfisld, were
covered with deerskins or wide strips of bark in summer and inhabited by a group of
friendly Winnebagoe Indiang who fished and trapped throughout the vicinity. They had
jr:-im-ﬂ:d a larger group teo the north, for the winter, vhere they held festivals and
dances periodicaliy. On & still night, he said, you could hear their tom-toms
calling the young braves to dance, and dance they ofien did until the dawn.

Pointing to a large, lom-lying mound cf irregular cutline in the snow
bafora them, he explained to Amplins Chamberlain that it was an Indien mound in the
shape of a turtla. Another one, farther on, apneared to be an elephant, or possibly
a bear. They were used, hé thought in the Indians' religleus ceremonles.

The swift-noving stream called NETHAH -- (Winnebago for "water®) «- with
its skeleton village near by, the long expanse of marsh, the gently sloping ground
or eitler side must have fired the imagination of siurdy Amplius Chamberlain that
mlmlit day, for by nicghtfall he had -arranged in his imagination to invest intthe
fortunes of the Butterfield claim for the purpose of harncssing thé water-power and
grectiny a mlll at the edge of that swampy ¢learing. There was jubilation in his
heart as he lay on the corn-husk eattress in Silas Jalsworth's cabin that night and
wetched, through a small glazed window high up under the eaves, the Northern Lights
shimuering and glowing in a celebration all for his benefit. He had part of the
money for his venture, and he would find a partner to ghare his enthusiasm, for
settlers were moving in from the Hew Zngland astates at a rapid rate that year. He
fell aaleep wondering just how ruch power the HERNAH CREEK would have——--and the
history of the white population of BRIGGSVILLE, Tomn of Douglas, Larquette County,
Wisconsin had begun!

The ¢laim to the south of Mesnah Creek and including the land asurrounding
Little Lake was Jonathan Butterfieid's, To the north of the Creck much of the land

had been claimed by cne Aarcn Town whe had returned to New Hampshire the fall before
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to bring his family west, The first concern of Amplius Chamberlain was, thersfore,
to provida suitable guarters for hils family, since the big log house of 3Sllas
Walaworth could accommedate only a lindted number. A log house was, accordingly,
built on the soutin side of the stream near the Indian camp. Another was built on the
site of what was later the Lotel, and to tnis cabin there came, in the fall of 1850,
Alexander Ellis Briggs of Shoreham, Vermont wiily a proup of homesteaders from that
vieinity.

A. E, Brigps became the partner that Amplius Chamberlain dreamed of, and
in a very short time the two men had negotiatad with Jonathan Butterfield and haron
Town for the right to build a dam across ¥eenah Creek to provide water-power for a
mill. Bosides giving the new sctilement the name of Triggsville, Alexander Briges
had glven it a purpose. He then returned to Vermont to bring nis family to the new
holdings, leaving Amplius Chamberlain, no doubt, to margnal the forces which would
Ireault. in the early completion of the dam and the building of the sawmill which was
to supply the early settlers with boards for their houses. The ddm was built with
two flumes——to the north and the south-——and the sawmill Finished in 1852 was built
at the gouth flume. YHere the {irst lumber manuiactured was some heavy cak plank and
jolsts to be uged in building the first jail erccfed at Portage City. The lumber
was taken on a flatboat down the Nsenzh Creek to the Fox River and thence up the Fox
to Ft. Winnebago which lay just ocutside the small frontiar town.

The dam, which was commenced that fall of 1850 made a lake to the westward
about three milez in length. To this lakc wim siven t.hé namg¢ of Ifason for the
carpentor who built the mill and was also the first hotel evmer of Briggsville -—-—
Charles laaon, DBeneath the waters of Lake rasoh sleep the ziant Indian mounds
which Jonathan Butterfield and Amplius Chamberlain gazed upen that bripght January
morning in 1850,

Aaron Tovn arrived to take up his claim in i'arch of 16850. He lived first

in a2 log house on the hill where Tyley Chamrerny now lives. At that time the.



fovernmant had not completed the subdivision of land into sections, and sll1 that one
had to do was to claim what one could see from gome high point, mark the corners,
blage a line around it, build a "claim shanty" and live upon the claim within a
e&rte-lin time, being careful not to encroach upen another's holdings. With the Townas
had come Robert Thompson and H. 3. Thomas with their families. 1a. Thompson claimed
shat is now the Miasell Davison farm and Horatio Thomas settled where Hugh Hindes
now lives. About that time also came the aforementicned Charles liason. One can
imagine the activity in the tiny settlement where all the available supplies had to
e hauled by team, overland 100 miles from i ilwaukes, The "store" was in the log
cabin where the hotel was la;.ter to rise, the cabin to which L, Brigga brought his
family in 1851. Besides his wife, Robey Ormsbee Briggs, thers were hiz four
children, Lydia, agod 2lj, who had been married to Darwin F. Atwood in 1848; Abby
Ormsbee, aged 22, who vas to become the wife of Ir. Litchell and the mother of
Robert E, Litchell; James Alexander,-then a boy of 15 years, and 1ittle Fuma Hobey
vho was only 8. Mrs, Briggs disliked :che confusion and the discomforta of life in
the log cabin bagides the new dam, where the settlers came for provisions as they
were brought iIn from Milwaukce, and vhere, doubtless, every newcomar stopped for
information, a hot msal, and even s bed. Accordingly & new home of logs was built
for her on the high bank of Meensh Creak, below the dam. This was later replaced by
a frame house where James A. Briggs reared his family of four children: Abby, Ellls,
William and Robey, and where William Heberlein now lives.

With the return of A. K. Briggs to the tiny viliage, it appears that the
building activities jncreased to sn almost feverish pltch. The foundations for the
"fiouring mill" at the north end of the flume ware commenced, and the buillding was
finally completed in 1653 after Hiram and Lysander Chapman had arrived from MNew York
State and taken an interest in the mill with Messrs. Briges and Chamberlain.

A. E. Brigps also constructed a brick kiln below the sawmill, im 1851. Chimney brick
gcld at %5.00 per thousand, well brick at £5.00, and s chesper grade at $4.00 per |

thousand.,
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In the meantime, history which had a bearing upon the destiny of lit{le
Briggsville, was in the making on the outskirts of the vicinity. Off to the north-
wast, towards Big Springs, James Slowey came with his widoewed mother and family from
Irelsnd, in 1850. And Marparet ifeDonald arrived with her family, the MHichael
ticDonzlds, to setfla in the southern part of Adamg County. Their trading post was
Brigegsville, and there beth families attended mass wherever it was held, in picneer
homes, prior to the building of St. lary's Church in 186L. Margarst Mclonald Slowey
and Janes Slowey had 11 children. They lived, all but one year, on what was knowm
as the George Jalsh farm, from their marriage in 1870 until lrs. Slowey's death in
1208, Three of the eleven children of this piorser couple are still residing at
Briggsville:; TChillip Slowey, Susan (Mrs. Sdw. linegan), and krs. Margaret O'Brien.

To the westward of Briggsville, the father of Dwight [ Eighme had built a
samall mill soon after hig arrivel in 184%, where a creek ran tarough what later
g;narations called Cummings Cove. Th%s wag abandoned bocauge the powsr suppiied was
found insufficient for ramning the mill., In this vicinity in the winter of 1851,
Lester C. Jacobs pioneered to what is now known ag the Claude Ellis farm. Nis
family followed in the spring of 1852. ir. Jacobs was killed in the Civil War ;nd
his widow later married Oliver Fellows who built the original house where the Poat
Gffice now stands. Cne of his daughters, Harriet, married Thomas Lewis Barlow who
purchased the Aarcn Towm farm in 1881, and was one of Brigzsville's ablest builders.
The son of this morriage, Charles Barlow, has been the village Postmaster from 1917
until 19250.

Another of the earliest settlers whose descendants live in the immediats
vicinity of Brigegsville, was Ebenezer A. Corning a relative of Daniel Webster. He
made the last lap of his journey from New Hampshire witn an ox team in 1850. His
claim, recorded in 1851 lay in the Town of Lewigston, Columbia County, a short
distance from the Lewiston Chease Factory of mores recent years, Mr. Corning was

gurveyor for the antire area, and farmer during the summsr months and a school-



teacher during the winter, He taught school for many years in his cwn distriet, and
evan the Gay School in the winter of '67 - 166,

In the fall of 1851 Edw. B. Craig, farmer and stock-dealer, came into the
naw.settJEment and purchased the property of Silas ualsworth cn the 0ld Pinery Road
at the Big Slough. The following year, ip 1853, he built his "hotel", known as
Lenomonea House; which did a large buesiness in the early history of Colwnbia County.
This interesting building and farm, after being successively in the charge of
L. V. Rich, Wm. Holinson, lim. Treadwell, and Jonathan and Asa Douglasz, becams the
praperty of Benjamin inacker vhose son, Ernest, is still its owner, It iz probable
that this was one of the first buildings nilt of the bricks manufactured at the
yard in Briggsville,

Three ar four miles northeast of Brippsville lies a small community knom
as Douglas Center. There, in 1849, Joseph Henry Locmer and his wife, Betay Cady
Ihauer, settled on the land directly north of what is now known as the Landdfaf Faro,.
Lkir. Loomer came {rom Hova Scotia and Betsy Cady from Erie County,”Htew York. The
Landgraf farm was settled in 1893 and has been owned by the same family eaver since.

A descendant of those earliest Loomsrs and Landgrafs is lirs. Lyra Landgraf

Sehwemerlein who has lived ia Bripgsvills for many yesara,

e shk b wl ol mP wb

Life a3 not without excitement and even danger in the Briggsville area of
those sarly times. Amplius Chamberlain, in his History of Columbia County, tells us

that "In 18L% a elaim society was organized, composed of wettlars in the towns of i
Newport, and Lewiston, Columbia County, and the counties of Adams and Marquette.

The object of the society to protect the firat settlers in their claima. The land, |l
not then being in market, was not subject teo entry, but many men leecating and |
improving lands selected, with the intention of securing their claim as soon aa

thrown in the market., It was fearsd that thers would be those who, observing

imprevements mads, would hasten to file claims before the original settler could do

89, thus defrauding them out of their Just riphts. & numbor of cases of disputed

claims came before the society, which they attempted to settle in their own way.

"In the spring of 1852, James Litechfield located upon the northwest
quarter of Section 1, Township 13, Range 7, srected a small frame dwelling and
cleared about § acres of land, He received notice from the socliety to vacate, as
another party had a prior claim, Consulting with neighbors, he was satisfied that

8
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Mr. Norris, the cther claimant, had gelected another quarter and was, therefore,
entitled to no more. For this reason he refused 40 go. (ne Saturday, in the menth
of May, 1852, near midnight, some W or 12 masked men came here and, calling up Mr.
angd Mrs, Litchfield, ordered tnem out of the house, set it on fire, burning it to
the ground. The unfortunate couple went to the house of John Brickwell whers they
remained for a few days, and from there to Mr. Briggs!, where they stayed until a
new housg could be built for them by the aywpathizing neighbors,

Mpive of the masked men were recognized by Mr. and Krs. Litchfield,
warrants were sworn out, and they were arrested and bound over for trial in the
Circuit Court, for arson,

"The first term, alter-indictment, the defentents pgot a contlnuance of the
cage, and at the time for the second term, Mrs. Litchfield was too 111 to attend the
trial, The matter was comprowised, and the case stricken from the docket.t

It is recorded that Jonathan Butterfield died very suddenly while riding
to Portage with two stranpers, in 1852. He was showing them the route of the New
Pinery Rcad, recently opened -~ the roed which crosses the Big Slaugh Bridge at the
Angcker Farm. He vms buried near his Little Lake, in the cemetefy at Sunsst Hill
{(where llark Peterson now livas). This cemetery was moved, a few years later, to ita
present location, - 1

South of Douglas Center lay the William Post farm, and to this propsrty
there arrived, on Christmas Eve 18%L, Joseph Gay and his family, This farm has baen
continuoualy occupisd by the Cays ever since. ©One of Joszeph CGay's daughters, Ellen,
becamse ths wife of James A, DBriggs.

In thisz same year lir. Lefavor aters arrived in Briggsville. Hia first
atore was in the log cabin bwilt For Aaron Town. Later he and He. Briges built a
store on the site of Dr. Boots' ¢old home, and this store and dwelling was later sold
to Charles wWaldo. Leanwhile, Lr. Town had built his frame dwslling to the north, on
the site where Will Kimball was to build, years later, when the Town house was moved
to the next lot north, (John Gray aznd his family cccupy it today.) The property
cceupied by lir, Tovm for his residence extended from the new Protestant Cemetery
aouth to the crossroad in the Village, and west to the read which is now
Brigegsville's main street. There were no cther dwellings on this large lot, at that

time, and 1t wes entirely surrounded by a stake-and-rider fence.



Hiram and Lysander Chapman, that year of 185hL, built the dwelling which
haa bean imown as the "Dean Howvse'! aince its purchase by that family in 1873. This
property upon which the Chapmans built was a part of the original homestead which
was lasued by Government Patent to Aaron Town.

In 185} came #illiam [urphy to the new settlament, where ha soon built a
flourishing trade in his store which 1s today Clark's Tavern. Thal same yaar
William dorrill arrived from Mandalph, Verment, with his two sons, John and Azro,
and two foster daughters, Harriet and Hosetta Dyer. He purchazed the land now known - -
a9 the Rugsell Davison farm, from Hobert Thompsen. The son, Jehn Lorrill, later
married Harrlet Dyer and lived in Brippaville for many years in the house last owned
by tra. James Gay. Son Azro lorrill was marrled, in 1865, to Kelvina Worden whose
father, Holly Grant iorden, had made claim in 1849 to the land knomn today as the
John west farm. There the original log house, although for many years disguised_'
with siding, is still in use as the residence. 4 granddaughter of Holly Gradt
Worden, Eloise Tanner, married (eorge Iiilliard in 18%0. Their three gsons and their _
children, living in and near Briggsville, and lMiss MNettie liorrill of Portage, are ‘trhle
only living descendants of the lorrills and the uWordens. Tha Tanner farm lay
between the Thomas lioses claim (later the Lueius D. iean farm), and the Meno:noﬂeé'
House eon the Big Slough, |

Pater A. Peterson, a young Norwegyian, came to the town of Lewiston in 185l
and soon thereafter moved to Bripggeville where he built a wagon shop and engaged In
his trade of carpenter. He married, in 1863, Anna Suphia- Dahl, and of his S child-
ren, threg are still living: lark L., lrs. Ella Dean, and [lisa Inez Paterson.

The spring of the year 1855 saw the arrival in the Briggsville area of
James Kimball and his wife, Almina Atwood Kimball, from Shoreham, Vermont. Their
first home was the farm now owned by the Houss fanily, scuth of Rebert Corning's on
old Highwey 23. There, in the fall of the same year, William Kimball was borm. A

¥Year later the Kimballs moved %o a farm farthsr south and west, in the Town of

10
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Lowiaton, later knowm as the Joe Corning farm. In 188l they moved to Briggsville
wvhere they started a store in what is now the 0dd Fellows Hall, using the wpatairs
as their dwelling.

To the same farm, first cccupied by the Eimballs, came Harvey Briggs,
about the year 1857. There, in 1858, Ella Bripgs was borm, who was to become the
wife of James Story Cay. Another daughter, Chlee, born in 1851 at Packwaukee,
married Frederick Davis who later cwned the Davis farm, Jjust south of the House
placa. This picturesque old house was built by Joshua Corning, a cousin of Ebanezer
Corning, who had & "pigeon bed" on the place, where he killed and dressed passenger
pigeons for market., The pigeonsa were attracted to the place by means of stool-
pigeons, and Mr. Corning hired people to pick thems This trade carried on extenslve-
1y in &merica scon led to the extermination of the passenger pigeon ang it is
interesting te nete that for many years there has been a revard of #10,000,00 offered
11:-0 anyone who might procure a pair of these birds. i

Joshua Corning also built the house in Brigesville wherd Darwin and Lydia
Briggs Atwood lived, now occupied by Clem Champeny, the grandson of anaother early
settler. Darwin Atwood was a half brother of lirs. James Kimball and a cousgin of
Joshua Atwood who came with Roaina, his wife, and Alma, his daughter, from Shoreham,
Vermont in 1657, to settle at "Ronnie Oaks", east acrose the Big Marsh from
Briggsville, Here they found a log cabin on a sandy knoll under the gnarled oaka
for which young Alma named the place. They found also relies of an sarlier civili-
gation: two larpge efligy mounds, an eagle with outapread winga, and, about two rods
ta the north, a bear mgund. The alte, on the banks of thae Neenah Creak, had long
been a camping ground for VWimnebago Indians. In fact, a family was encamped there
when the Atwoods arrived. Their small daughter, liartha (Good Village} Decorsh was
to become the wife of Henry Dick—--mn Indain name well known to Briggaville rosi-
dents for many years until hig death, in 1932, at the age of 19.

Henry Dick came from Wittenberg, ‘lisconsin, frem a full-blocded finnebago

11
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family. He settled in Adams County upon his marrlage to Lartha but in the early
1900's he traded a tract of land in that county for a piece of land owned by Eugenes
Gray in Marquette County. There he spert his ramalning years.

A prandson of Henry Dick, Nathan Decorah, wrote in 1943 a3 follows:
nouis Decorah and his paternal forebears were of French descent. History
tells of the French general that commanded the garrison at Quebec in the esarly
days of that veonderful city, History relsies the marriage of thls French army
officer to the chief's daughter of the liinnebarc Tribe.-—-cns son and two
daughters were born of this murriage.t

The chief's daughter, mentiocned above, was Glory-of-the-Morning, and the
French geﬁeral waz called De Kaury, from whence the name [ecorah.

The Decorahs had been chiefs of the Winnebago tribe for many years when,
in 1837, the Indians were invited to sell their remaining lands east of the
Missisgippl to the Government. lir. Chamberlain in his Eiastory of Columbia County
mrites:

one-gyed Dakaury, Little Do Kau{-y, ifinneshiek, Jaukon De Kaury and ai.:l!L other

chiefs complied with the request. They reserved the privilege of occuping

their landa until 1840, and received their annuity at Portage until that time.t
The whites, nevertheless, made claims on the ceded lands.

teny of tha ploneers were kind and friendly towards their Indian neighbors
and the latter frequently showed their appreciation by giving them Indian namea and
midopting them into their tribe, a3 well as by performing kindnesses of 3 more
material nature,

Pa~zee-gah and Koo=nee-kah-gah were two of the Indian women well lmown to
the early settlera, and Big Sam Decoreh, John Cance, Hed- Haorn and Smoke Smolkte were
prominent men in the tribe., The women taught many a worriosd housewile how to use
the native herbs as medicine, and it is reported that once when Alexander Briggs

had a terrible nose~blead, "Blue~Eyes" Decorah brought herbs and instructed

kra. Briges how to use them. The bleeding stopped almost immediately.

- e el mm W e W

Nathaniel Gray, his wife, Julia, and seven children, Wallace, Harmon, Ira,
Bugene, Dudley, Helen and Anna, came from tne town of Corinth, New York in February,
1z
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1857, and located on tha farm now owned by Ira Brancel. Later they moved to the
Parry Monger homestead where Donald Grey now lives. lire Gray was a shoemaker by
trade and made all the hoots end ghoes for his family. He was keenly interested in
farmiﬂg and at one time owned Sevaral hundred acres. There are many deacendants of
Mathaniel end Julia Oray living in Briggsville and its environs,

The first Catholic cemetery was located gt the crossroada of what today
are the Brancel, Joe Gay and Durmeister farms., This plot was donated by a Mr.
YeIntyre. The cemetery was moved to its present location about 1856 with the
purchage of the land {rom the original Aaron Town homestead. The transactlon 1s
described as follows in a letter, dated april 1Y, 1856, to the Zditors of the

Badger State:

Dear Sira: ¢n liednesday of last week T vigited a gettleamsnt of Irish
Catholicas in tiwe neiphborhoed of Brigps' Mill, some ten milea diatant from
thie ¢ity. They a1l expressed a wish to have a church for Divine servile
erected in their vicinity.

To have their wishes realizad, I waited on lir, Briggs, the proprietor of
the promising villase which bears his name; and wilth true genulne liberality
he donated to the congregation two large lots, heautifully located for the
purpcse required, together with two agres for a burial ground, the last at a
nominal charge.

The subscription 1list was opened oen ihe spot and in a few minutas this
zealous people in their laudable pride each to have the highest figure annexed
to his name, gave ample assurance that the church will be completed durlng the
fortheoming summer,

I think I'm only discharging a debt of gratitude to Lr. Briggs to make
known through the medium of your journal this wvery liberal donation, as well
ad to return my individual thanks not only for the mapaificent gif't but slao
For the bland and courteous manner in which it was bestowed.

I lert Lir, Briggsat nephew, a young lawyer of much promise, engaged in
drawing of the deed. The conduct of both the Uncle and Nephew contrasts
Pleasantly with the blggoted spirit which talismanic=like influences the
thou%t, warda and deeds of the "Knights of tha dark lentern®™ we meet with
elaawhere.

For information which may be useful to certain classes of your readers,
let me add, kessrs. Editors, that I believe Briggsvills, from its locality, the
quality of the s¢il of the surrounding district, its waterpower, etc. etec. is
an eligible place for the enterpriaing mechanic, the sfuﬁrg storekeeper or the
erargetic hushandman,
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Begging a cormer for the above in your issue of this week to pay “Homor 4o
to whom honer is dues,! e,
I am dear Sirs,
Yours obliged, -
James David Roche
{City Clerk's Office, Portage, April 12, 1856.)

Prior to the completion of the church in 186L, mass was offered in the
homea of the ploneers, notably in the large log house of Patrick Clark, one of the
? =—yery early settlers on the North shore of Lake Hason., [any pioneers contributsd to

the bullding of the church. Dne-pariahiuner |John Gaffney, a Union scldier in the

%' Civil War, sent his contribution from the batilefield of Chickamauga.

———h

Father Edward ilelsh was the first resident pastor who came in 1881 but
died socon thereafter. He was succeeded by Father John Schwartzmeyer under
whosa supervision the rectory was enlarged and the church enlarged and rebuilt.

The cornerstone was lald early in 1885 and in July, 1805, the church was
complated.

Vhen the church and pastor's residence were burned in 192L the new church
and rectory were built the following year and dedicated by Archbishop
Sebastisn S. Uessmer of lfilwaukee, who for L0 years came to Briggsvillé every
three years to administer Confirmation,

Pilot Fnob and Friendship were former missions of St. Mary's of Briggsville.

— ot mw wb MY MR e am

Harquette County is one of the oldest of the polltical units formed by the
aubdivision of Brown County of pre-territorisl days. It was set aside by an sect of
the Lapislature Dec, 7, 1834, The village of Briggsville was platted October 23,
185ly, by Harvey Briggs. Amplius Chamberlain was the first Town Superintendent, and
Henry Parrott was the first Town Clerk who transcribed the recerds for Deuglas and
Moundville, The Town of Douglas was forwed in 1868, so nsmed for Stevan A. Douglas
of the Lincoln-Douglas debatea. Long before this tims, howaver, the firat election
in the ¢community was held at the Lewis farm, the [irat claim recorded in lLewlston
near the present Town Hall, and included all the people from Briggsvilie and the
surrounding territory.

With the growth of the Villape came the organization of the school
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disirict which in thoss days included Brigegsville and Moundville, On December 11,
1852, the first meeting of the district was held in the village stors. It was
vated to bulld a log school, to raize 425.00 to finish the building, and that the
schoolhouse be gituated on the hill back of the A.E. Briggs home, There the child-
ren when they stele a lock out of the windows would often ses Indiang paddling down
the creek. Vhan school opened for three months in 1853, Abby 0. Briggs wss the
teacher. There were 31 pupils ranging in age from four to tweniy. Heratio 5.
Thomas was chosen superintendent and G. H. Chamberlain clerk pro=tem. Perry longer
was made diracter and Z. H. Chamberlain clerk for the ensuing year.

Thig early community was composed of English, Irish, and derman settlers
who did not alweys agree. 7Tn 1858 the English and the Irish, from both Briggsville
and Moundville, fell into disagreement about the school district, 5o it_uas brought
to a vete. The English persuaded the Germans te vote with them to separate
lMoundville and Briggaville and so won the pointl 1

A new zchool was built on the'site of the present Odd Fellows Hall in 1859
and was later incorpurated intc that building. Later still in 1868 a ihird sehocl
was built on the lot back of the present Fost Gffice, This building was moved to &
spot north of the Catholic Chureh; and in 1924 the present Village School was
arected. The Ipundville school which was organized as the result of the "battle" is
known as District #l1, or the Gay School,

Development of the wvillage continued during these early yeara with the
erection of a small frame building where the liotel parking lot is now located. Hera
John Hays conducted a shoe shop. Barney brogan built and operated a blacksmith shop
where the restaurant and meat market now stand. In 1858 a Sugar Mill ﬁas erected cn
the Neenah Creek, below the dam. Sorghum syrup sold at the low price of 18 cents
per gallon. Henry Dyer built a Carding ilill scross the road from the Sugar L1,

The latter was blowm dovm the Creek by the cyclone of July L, 1873.
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Henry Dyer's son, '"Hank" Dyer, bought the hotel from Chas. Msson. At this
time the building wes also used as the towm's meeting hall. Thomas ERyan and llichael
Costello purchased it from Iyer and they, in turn, sold it to "Oney" Connors.
This old building, which closely ressmbled a New England inn, burned to the ground
on July 7, 1912, and was replaced thereafter by the present building Imown as the
Pheasant Inn,

Lucius Danforth Dean and hls family came to Briggsville in 1858 and
settled on the Thomas ioses farm one nile south of the village. This farm remained
in the Dean family until November, 19L%. The family consisted of lir., Dean and his
wife, Lucine Goodnow Dean and thelr 6 chlldren: Catherine, Susanna, Yolney,
Alvarton, Herbert and Alice.

Alverton (. Dean, knewn ag "Wert", was for many years a leader in musical
interests of the community. It was.a family heritage to vhich two of his njeces, as
well as twe of his grand-nieces, succee'ded. He dealt in musical instruments (plancs
and orpans), until the time of his death in 1917.

VYolney married lary Ann Macfarland and to this marriape were born Charles
Herbert (Pert}, Gertrude Dean Forbes, Susan Dean Cummings, John Parker Dean, Deisy
Degn williams and Helen [ean Enyeart.

In 1873 Lucius Desn and his family moved to Briggaville and settled in the
home which 1y atill occupied by Dalsy Williams and Gertrude Forbes. This beautiful
old house on the Lake shore, beneath a giant elm, built by Hiram and Lyasander
Chapman in 185k, 13 one of the 1 oldest houses in the village. Dr. Dean and his
son, Herbert, operated s harness and leather gocods business in & small stere on the
site of the present Briggsville garage. This building was later movad to the banks

of the Big Slough, on the Tom Davison farm, and 1s still in uvse.

It would appear that litile Brigesville in its earliest years could boﬁst-
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more post-office locations than many another villape of 1ta size. In 185L William
Yurphy was appointsd first postmaster, with the office located in his atore. Tha
mail was brought by stagecoach from Portage City. In 1860 Charles Waldo waa
appéinted poatmaster, with the office in his atore, noxt deor to Murphy's. In 188}
it was apain maved to the old liurphy stors, and at that time mail was brought by a
staps line throupgh Portage City, Briggsville, Big Springs, Davis Cornera, Littls
Lake, Orand Msrsh, Spring Bluif and Friendship.

In 1888 Peter A, Peterson received the appointment with the office aite
unchanged. ©On January lst., 1893, the first money-order was issued. In 189h,

J« F. Lurphy waa appointed .postmastar. His office was in what 15 now the Cdd
Pellowa Hall (then the James Kimballs® store.} In 1838 Peter A. Petersoen wae apain
appointed to the office, followed by his son, Mark D. Peterson in 1899, and the aite
remained the zame.

In 1904 Inez L. Peterson was appointed postmistress and tha officd was
movad to the site of the present Brigigsville garage. The following year Eliza
Kimbhall Phelps was appeintad postmistress and the office was located in the new
Eimball Store. Mail was supplied by the present rural route ocut of Portage, with
M. D. Peterson es carrier. In 1916 Frank D. Kimball was appointed acting postmaster
and the following year Charles Barlow took over the duties, with the office moved to
his home. This centennial year marks his 33rd in office and his retirement. It may
well he that the little postoffice is "on the mova" againl

In 1861 snd 162 three families became cloge neighbors sast of the Neenah
Creek in the Gay Scheol district. George and Jane Smith came fyrom Scotland and
built a hospitable log cabin where Fred Mills now has his farm., Next door, to the
gouth, came Joseph Orandy and hia family to settle on the farm now owned by John
and Annie Fhillips, snd John Hindes moved tc the farm now occupiled by James 0'Keefe.

I, Hindes had returned from the Civil Vlar to Pewaukee, Wis. to find that fiye nf
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Waldo's Store and Flouring Mill - 185

tason Hotel and Murphy Store—- 1854




KEY TO SCHOOL FPICTURE

Firzt RHow = Jeft to right:
Laura Murphy, Helen Dean, Lyda Alexander, Herman Hanson, (Ole Hanson,

Glen Dyer, Charlie Barlow.

Second Row - left to right:
Dode Cummings, Ella Dean, Carrie Stevens, Bortha Stevens,
Dalsy Williars, Pelle Breooks, Tod Gray, John Dean, Tylie Champeny,{

Johnie Murnly, Gecrge Orton, -Jake Gray.

Third Rew ~ left to right:
Laura Paige, Roby Briggs, Oert Forbes, Iiinnie Brancel,
Abbie Briggs - teacher, Estelle Cumming, Mark Peterson, Will Briggs,

Ieon Gray, .illy urphy, Harme Gray.




his seven younz daughters had died during his absznce, of the dreaded diphtheria.
He and Mrs. Hindes came to Briggesvills, then,in 1862, with Nancy, who was to marry
Thomas west and whose children, Johm Richard and 4rna are living in the Briggsville
area today, and Alice. Here lartin Hindes was born the folleowing yesar, and thers-
after Parson and John.
One of the Grandy girls, Emme, marrizd Ceorge Smith's son, and Gerirude
Grandy was later to marry Robert Heverlein whose father, Jacob, came in 1868 to the
farm acrogs the reoad from Joseph Gay's. There were s5ix children in this family when
1t arrived from Washington County. IlYinnie vas later married to William Kimball, and
Froderick became the hushand of Sarah Peterson, eldest daughter of the picneer,
Peter A. Peaterson. William Hebarlein, born in the Town of Douglas a year after the
family's arrival, married Gertrude Phillips, a granddanghter of Dwight D. Elghma's
gister, BEunice. Me. Heberlein iz the omner of the A. E. Briggs homestead today.
His only sufviging sister, Kathryn, (¥rs. Charles Chanmpeny) now aged B9, livds at
Ouford, Kanpas.
It ig only in rocent years that this part of tha country has bacoms
Amerdcats Dairyland!. Wisconsin, in those early days, was noted for its sheat but
the crops were repeatedly ravaged by cinch-bugs and wheatraising ceassd to be
profitable. The next important crop is described by Amplius Chamberlain as followa:
The cultivation of hops for the general market commenced in this vicinlty
in 1889, The profitd made by those engaged in the cultura of hops being large,
one alter another of the farmers engaped in it until, in 1867, the whols
viecinity was excited in a wonderful manner and a very large erea of land wan
davotad to this purpose.
when the geason came for pleking and drying, considerable difficulty was
experienced in sscuring a sufficient number of pickers, and this demand created
a new Industry, Laroy Gates conceived the idea of poing to many of tha cities
and villages throughout the state, securing the services of as many girls aa
poasible, and hiring them to the farmers at & certain amount per hesd. It
required 15,000 pickers to gather the crop this year, 10,000 of whom were
brought from sbroad.

The editor of the lilwaukee Sentinel wag on cne of the trains bringing a
delegation of pickers to this place, and thus axpresses his thoughts:
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"Coming from lilwaukee, a few days age, while comfortably enjoying a cigar
in the smoking room, the train stopped at a little station—---there they wera,
angd in they camg—~~a thousand we thaught, but the recruiting offlcer said there
were but 600! A thousand wers coming on the next train.

"The Major General of this division of the army of hop-plckers was Lercy
Gates, whe made the unsuspecting public believe that he is a Dells pilot,
Pilot he ia, but not of logs or lumber--ha pilots the wearerz of calice and
crincline to the fields where the hops do grow, It broadens human feelings to
know there are so many lively girls in the world, and beer will be none the
vwworge for a view of the hands which pick the berriss that give it its hltter- 1

aweat.!

The total yield lor the year, shipped from one station, was 5,L00,000 ‘
pounds, and sold frem 50 centy to 65 zents per pound, yielding over %2,700,000;
$270,000 of which was paid as wages to the girls,

The farizers were delighted with their experience and each believed he had
found the way to sure wealth. Therefore, in 1868, the number of hop=-yards
lhereased and older ones ware enlarged, Uhen the season for picking drew near,
the question arecse as te where to Find pickers. Advertisemenis were placed
throughout the state and agencies aestablished in the villages. Contracts were
made for the season with all who would po, their fare, board and highest wages
being puaranteed. Trains were chartered and for several days every freight and
passenger train was crowded with fair women on their way to the hop fields.
Those from each wicinity were c¢lassified as 4, By C, cte. and were instructed
to go with the party who should call for thelr class. Farmers who had gon-
tracted for a certain number of pickers were told they should receive their
number from a specified clasa, | -

nprincipled men took advantage of the circumstances, and, on arrival of
the trains, would call out, "Class A, take this wagonl", "This way, all
belonging to Clasas [Y, thus de=ceiving the ladies and swindling the contractors
cut of their feeg and the farmers out of their pickers.

The heavicst load contained about 1,200. It arrived in the night, bhut
over 300 teams were ready to take the pickers to the hop=yards. The creop this
year amounted to 30,000 balss, but the price had dropped to 10 cents a pound.
5600,000 was realized, but half went to the pickers.

In 1869 the hop-yards were few and far between, though there are a few
who never abandoned the business.

Lany men, who later became prominent, founded their fortunes in the heop-
yards., Large, ornate houses were built, and in addition to housing the hop-

pickers, were the scene of many dances, which often lasted until time to go to
the [islds.

- A gm e mE m gm

In 1865 John Brenzel and his family arrived in the vicinity. The name was
later changed to @rancel, and his sons, Frederick, ‘/illiam and John all played

prominent parts in the developrent of the Briggsville region.
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Jay P. Colburn, eldest son of the plonear, Alonzo W. Colburn whe came to
Wisconsin in 1845 and sattled in Newport, came to Lewiston in 1866, He was a Cooper
by trade and a Civil ‘/ar veteran. He married Lucy E. Jacobs, ancther daughter of
the pioneer Lester C. Jacobs. Their oldeat son, Frenk L. a pioneer of the c01g,

Iz living in Briggsville in the nouse that was bullt by the widow of George West,
grandfather of the generstion atill living in Eriggsville.

Evan lagnus Hanson came from Ness Rumarika, Norway, in 1867 at the age of
22. He settled in Brigesville where he lived until his death in 192k, working
untiringly at his trades of carpentry and shoe-making. In l879 he married Hilda
Paulson, who was born near Osla, Horway in 1859 and camne to the Tovmn of Lewiston at
tha age of 8. rs. Hanson has been & resident of Dricgesville for 71 yearg ang makes
her homs with IIrs. Tyley G. Champeny, wio is one of her eight living children.

The first Protestant Church in Briggsville was s Universalist Socjety
organized in 1873 by Joserh Iranklin Baéon, a blacksmith by trade, Early in that
Yyear a church was built on the site of the present one, but waa destroyed by the
cyclone of July lth, before its completion.

Iuciue Danforth Dsan was one of the founders, and it was largely through
the untiring efforts of Lydia Briggs Atwood that the lethodist Episcopal Church
Soclaty purchaged the property after the Universalist scclety had decided not to
rebuild, This church was ecompleted in 1879,

In 1871 Frederick J. Burmeister moved to the Town of Douglas and purchased
the Terry Cromlet farm from the original swner of the land, The following year hes
divided his farm with Conrad Schwemerlein who had come to the area in 1870. The
holdinga were finally re-~united as a result of his marriage to M¥r. Schwemerlein's
daughter. Their son, Andrew, lives on the old farm,

In Lkarch of 1877 Joseph Champeny, born in England Oct. 2, 1838, arrived in
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Briggsville to purchase a half interest in the flouring mill of James A. Briggs. In
186C he bought the remaining interest in the mill and thersafter, until its zale in
1942, it was cperated by the Champeny family, father and sons. A few years later
Charles Champeny, his son, built a sammill a few rods south of the present mill.

Cn December 2, 1892, the dom, which had been reconstructed the year
before, went out because of heavy frost which cracked the foundations. The
catastrophe cccurred in the middle of the night and before it was disceovered had
waghed out the dam, the walls beneath the mill, and 80 feet on the liest side of the
fiume, taking with it a part of the Champeny saw-mill and the millshed.

History deals solely in M"facts ' fipgers® and fhare ig 1ittle roon
between its covars for the folk-lore znd hwmor vhich are the eassence of the living
characters who walk across its pages. Nevortheless, it would be unfair to leave
ﬁriggsville to the revares of modern wehicles and "contraptions" without redalling
that in 1860 the Brigmsville Library Aaéociation was formed, with-a membership of L2

persons——and 9 bocks! These consisted of the life of Horace Greeley, Europa, Lives

of the Signers of the Declaration of Independence, Cur Happy Home, Green lountain

Girls, Battlefields of the Revolution, Livingstone's Dxplorations, Dr. Valeritine's

Lectures, and Mrs. Sigourne;'s Poems.

There wore arusing characters vho furnished high comedy for the asetilers
but who should rempain gnonymwous to all but those who knew them., Among them was the
lady who, never content with one apron in a day, wore 3,"h or even 5, one above the
other. And there wsz the young man whe asked the obiject of his devotlon to change
their date from Thursday to Friday, explaining that he shaved on Fridgys and would
therefore ba more presentable on that day! There was alao the woman who, coming
across the Big Larsh "with 100 pounds of rosts and 'Bub' on her back¥, sank into the
mire Yclean up to her neck and slick down to her heelg™:

There was a "preacher” who, in those early days, might have been a charter
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rember of the Liars! Club, so "tall" srers his tales. He had "a rich uncles whe had
500 cats and every day his aunt fed 'em a pail of milk." (One wonders how far that
pail of milk would have gone, even in 1850!) He it was vho "saw a snake swallew 1l
pigéﬂns." Hs must have been a gay blade, for a preacher, becauss he related that
once he danced 5& hard all night that when he took off his boots in the morning
fthey were full of blood"i

And there was the tiny girl who, listening wide-eyed to a Scottish
grandmals description ¢f the '"vesgssl" in which she made her harrowing voyage to
Amarica, wondered for years, without daring to ask, how anyone could be tranasported
across the briney deep in anything so strange!

The rest of Drigesville's history belongs toe a more modern era and was
reflected clearly in the diarles which Charlotte .Jaldo kept so faithfully for many
Years., From them, and others, it ig knowm that in 1

1876: The 0dd Fellows organized with % charter members; ¥We. Morgan, 0.
Bovming, :i, v, Pape, Hugh Ennis and 0.C. Pomeroy.

1881: Cormelius Peterson, carpenter, with his family, arrived from Norway to
gottle in Briggsville.

1883: Lars Hanson and famlly arrived from Worway.

188Lr OQct. 27th--G.A.H. organized. (. J. Rershaw Post, #188, with 19
comradea, First commander, Hobert Hume. First meetinga in Dyer'a
hall.}
Store bullding around old schoolhouss completed for EKimballs,

1886; G.A.R. Hall built by Peter Peterson and Thos. Barlow, the supervisors
raising the money by Pork and Bean dances.

1820: Fred Heberlein on the stageccach to Portage, returning to school,
189): HMay 12==The Briggsville Creamery cpened.

1892; March 2-=Melvin Griffin came to live at Waldes',
Decenber Z--The Briggsville Dam weni out.




